
 

 

www.lichfielddc.gov.uk 
 

 

/lichfielddc 
 

 

lichfield_dc 

 

 

MyStaffs App 

 

Your ref  

 

Our ref     
Ask for Laura Brentnall 

Email laura.brentnall@lichfielddc.gov.uk 

  

 

District Council House, Frog Lane 
Lichfield, Staffordshire WS136YU  

 
Customer Services 01543 308000 

Direct Line 01543 308065 

Wednesday, 23 September 2020 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE 
 
In light of the current Covid-19 pandemic and government advice on social distancing, the  
Employment Committee arranged to take place THURSDAY, 1ST OCTOBER, 2020 at 6.00 
PM will be held as a virtual meeting and streamed online (further information is available on 
our website).  
 
Yours Faithfully 

 
 

 
 
Christie Tims 
Head of Governance and Performance 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
To: Members of Employment Committee 
 

Councillors Humphreys (Chairman), Barnett (Vice-Chair), Birch, Grange, Greatorex, 
Gwilt, Robertson, Silvester-Hall, Warburton and S Wilcox 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

www.lichfielddc.gov.uk 
 

 

/lichfielddc 
 

 

lichfield_dc 

 

 

MyStaffs App 

 

 
AGENDA 

1. Apologies for Absence   

2. Declarations of Interest   

3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting  3 - 6 

4. Apprenticeship Update  7 - 10 

 (Report of Head of Corporate Services/Monitoring Officer) 
 

 

5. Exclusion of Press and Public   

 RESOLVED: “That as publicity would be 
prejudicial to the public interest by reason of 
the confidential nature of the business to be 
transacted, the public and press be excluded 
from the meeting for the following items of 
business, which would involve the likely 
disclosure of exempt information as defined 
in Paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of 
the Local Government Act 1972” 

 
IN PRIVATE 

 

6. Covid 19 Response Payments  11 - 14 

7. Voluntary Redundancy  15 - 18 

 



 

EMPLOYMENT COMMITTEE 
 

1 JULY 2020 
 

PRESENT: 
 
Councillors Humphreys (Chairman), Barnett (Vice-Chair), Birch, Grange, Greatorex, 
Robertson, Silvester-Hall, Warburton and S Wilcox 
 

24 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies were received from Councillor Gwilt. 
 
 

25 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
There were no declarations of interests. 
 
 

26 MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the previous meeting as circulated were agreed.  
 
RESOLVED: That the minutes of the previous meeting be signed as a correct record, 
 
 

27 SENIOR MANAGEMENT REVIEW  
 
The Committee received a report on the proposed changes to the Senior Management 
Structure following the departure of three Heads of Service (HoS) and the two Directors.  It 
was also requested that delegated authority be given to amend job titles to aid recruitment if 
required. 
 
It was reported that following the departure of the two Director roles, it was agreed to 
reapportion their responsibilities to the existing and re-designated Heads of Service on a trial 
basis.  It was also reported that this structure with fewer tiers of management and more direct 
lines of accountability had operated very well and this had been demonstrated during the 
Covid-19 crisis. 
It was asked if giving more responsibilities to Heads of Service and having them ‘step up’ 
could cause gaps lower in the structure.  The Chief Executive reported that she had tasked all 
HoS to consider the structures of their service areas and submit changes if deemed necessary 
to carry out all roles effectively.  It was noted that the budget for the Director posts had not 
been deleted as yet and this could be used to aid training and allow for the service area 
restructures. 
 
When asked, it was confirmed that only informal consultation was undertaken until the 
Committee had given approval, then the formal consultation started. 
 
It was noted that it may seem that there had been a high turnover of senior management and 
so requested that context be given.  This was agreed and it was noted that departures had 
been for career opportunities elsewhere and in one case, health reasons.  It was reported and 
the Committee reassured that exit interviews were undertaken and feedback had been 
received. 
 
It was requested that it be made clear in the proposed structure where the new Deputy Head 
of Paid Service responsibility would lie and this was agreed. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

It was noted that there would be a review of the structure and indeed it would be continuingly 
reviewed by the Chief Executive in her Head of Paid Service role. 
 
RESOLVED: (1) That the permanent removal of the posts of Director (Community and 

Place) and Director (Transformation and Resource) from the establishment with 
immediate effect be approved; 

 
(2) That confirmation of the Leadership team structure as set out in 
Appendix 1 to the report be given; 

 
(3)  That re-designation of the position of the Head of Corporate Services to 
the Head of Governance and Performance, to more effectively reflect their 
duties and responsibilities including the role of Monitoring Officer be approved; 

 
(4) That re-designation of Assistant Chief Executive to the Head of 
Corporate Services and designation of that role as Deputy Head of Paid 
Service going forward be approved; 
(5) That delegated approval be given to the Head of Governance & 
Performance, in consultation with the Chair of the Committee, to update the 
relevant HR policies to the appropriate job titles in the new structure. 
(6) That delegation be given to the Head of Paid Service and the Chair of 
the Committee to amend the job title of the Head of Corporate Services as 
appropriate to maximise recruitment potential to the role before it is advertised. 

 
 
 

28 PAY POLICY STATEMENT  
 
Members received a report on the Council’s duties under Section 38 of the Localism Act 2011 
regarding the preparation of a Pay Policy Statement for 2020/21.  It was reported that its 
purpose was to be open and transparent about the distribution of pay to Officers.  It was noted 
that it was a public document and would require approval from Full Council. 
 
It was noted that the ratio between the pay scales were comparable to other local authorities 
and it was asked if other allowances like car allowances had been reviewed as well as 
termination payments.  It was reported the car allowance was a national set figure however it 
was noted that it was on the People Strategy work plan for the coming year and would be 
considered with other terms of conditions and their appropriateness.  It was also noted that 
benchmarking was undertaken on a regular basis through West Midlands Employers.  It was 
reported that there would be an Exit Pay Cap introduced through legislation and would also be 
considered via the people Strategy. 
 
Apprenticeships were discussed and it was noted that the ones we have were paid as part of 
the normal pay scale and not the apprenticeship rate.  It was requested that the chart be 
amended to reflect this positive point. 
 
RESOLVED:  (1) That the contents of the updated Pay Policy Statement be approved 

and recommended for approval by Full Council on 14th July 2020; 
 

(2) That delegated authority be granted to the Head of Governance & 
Performance in consultation with the Chairman of this committee, to update 
and republish the pay policy once the national pay negotiations for 2020 are 
concluded. 

 
 

29 GENDER PAY REPORTING  
 

Page 4



 

The Committee received a report on the gender pay gap at the authority as of the 31st March.  
It was reported that Lichfield District Council fared well compared to others nationally and 
locally however it was noted that due to the Covid-19 pandemic, the legal requirement to 
produce a report had been postponed for this year and some organisations had taken 
advantage of that. It was noted that as the Council had got the required data, it was 
considered right to still publish as planned as a key part of the Council’s assurance 
framework. 
 
It was reported and the Committee was pleased to note that this year the Council’s mean pay 
gap was 5.62% which was a significant drop from 8.48% reported last year. It was noted that 
this was due to the use of a part time IR35 role to cover senior vacancies in the previous year, 
the current rate of 5.62% more accurately reflected the actual gap that exists within the 
workforce profile. 
 
It was reported that there was no glass ceilings at Lichfield District Council and there was a 
good representation of female officers at the senior level.  It was noted however that there 
were issues around part time staff and males were paid more than females mainly due to the 
type of work.  It was reported that many of the lower technical staff were the joint waste 
operatives who were males, this gave the disproportion at that level.  This was debated by the 
Committee and it was noted that it was this was the same case last year and it was asked if 
anything had been reviewed in how recruitment to joint waste was carried out to help mitigate 
this including social media which traditionally attracts a more male audience. It was reported 
that the new Head of Service for Operational Services was taking this issue seriously and is a 
key component of the People Strategy to fully review the recruitment process.  It was 
requested that an update on this be considered by the Committee at their next meeting. 
 
RESOLVED: That the committee note the gender pay gap figures for 2020 and the contents 
of the report for publication. 
 
The Committee wished to thank all Officers and recognised their dedication in keeping 
services going and serving the District during the unprecedented times of the Covid-19 
pandemic. 
 
 
 

(The Meeting closed at 6.55 pm) 
 
 
 
 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



Apprenticeship Update 

Cabinet Member for Innovation, Commercialisation and Corporate Services 
 

 

Date: 01 October 2020 

Agenda Item: Apprenticeships Update 

Contact Officer: Samantha Mills 

Tel Number: 01543 308826 Employment 
Committee 

 

Email: Samantha.mills@lichfielddc.gov.uk 

Key Decision?  NO  

Local Ward 
Members 

None 

    

 

1. Executive Summary 

1.1 All public bodies in England with more than 250 employees must report on the apprenticeship target. 
This target is to employ at least 2.3% of the workforce as new apprenticeship starts for the period 1 
April 2017 to 31 March 2021. It is assessed as an annual average over this 4 year period, and it 
is mandatory to report this annually. The deadline for the report to be completed is 30 September each 
year from 2018 to 2021.  

1.2 This report outlines the data and some of the narrative we will need to submit to the .Gov website and 
our apprenticeship account. Between October and December 2020 we will be re-launching our 
apprenticeship programme following disruption caused by the Covid 19 pandemic earlier this year.  
There is still no clear indication from government as to what the penalty of failing to reach the target 
will be and many employers and smaller councils have struggled to use their levy and meet the targets 
set with research showing that only 11% of public sector bodies meeting it (Public Sector 
Apprenticeship Target Reporting – see link below). 

1.3 Progress towards the target has been slow for a number of factors detailed in the report. The table 
below sets out what we have achieved and reported to date: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.4 By December 2020, we will have increased that figure to 2.06% of the workforce (this is inclusive of 
existing apprentices) bringing the total number to 6. Further programmes in 2021 for existing staff to 
achieve qualifications using the apprentice scheme will significantly increase this by at least a further 6. 

1.5  From 1 August 2020 to 31 January 2021 the government’s new incentive ‘hire a new apprentice 
payment’ is available for employers that take on new apprentices.  We meet the criteria for this 
payment and we have one apprentice eligible so far for the government’s incentive payment of £2,000, 
(16 -24) in addition to the £1,000 we have already received. 

1.6  From August 2019 to August 2020 the council has been unable to spend some of its levy funds 
resulting in a loss of £28,531.98 back to central government of expired funds, offset against a levy 
income of £33,953.70.  (Figures of GOV.UK website). 

Year 2017/18 2018/19 2019/20 

Target 

Head count 

Actual  

% of workforce 

10 

414 

4 

0.96% 

7 

304 

3 

0.97% 

7 

290 

3 

1.03% 

Page 7

Agenda Item 4



2. Recommendations 

2.1 That members of the committee note the progress made to date, planned actions for the coming year 
and returns made to the government portal.   

 

3.  Background 

3.1 We like many other many other district councils have faced numerous challenges in appointing 
apprentices including: 

• Lack of dedicated resources – to promote and support the development of effective 
frameworks with providers that meet out requirements. It has taken many months for 
frameworks that support the professions in local government to be developed.  

• Requirement for experienced staff – due to our limited resources much of our recruitment has 
required positions to be filled by experienced staff so that we can fulfil our statutory 
obligations. We advertised over 80 jobs in 2018 -19, of these vacancies which articulated the 
need for experienced staff. Very few teams have capacity for trainee or development positions. 

• Capacity and availability of management and pastoral care in teams to support staff new to 
working environments and undergoing training. Most managers at the council are also 
professional or technical officers with limited capacity to provide support to inexperienced or 
staff undergoing training. 

• Types of trades and volumes of workers to support development and career progression are 
limited within our authority. The only large cohort of staff are within our joint waste and 
operational services, where most apprenticeships have been traditionally based. 

• Length of some apprenticeships -This has proved to be a barrier for some employees and 
managers and when considering undertaking an apprenticeship, especially as it requires 20% 
‘off the job training’.  Dependent on the apprenticeship it is often quicker to complete a non-
levy funded qualification than work with a provider within the apprenticeship standards.   

3.2  Since our last report we have also had some success: 

• During 2019 one apprenticeship was offered as a development role on the standard job hourly 
rate – this attracted over 40 applicants and we successfully recruited.  

• Professional frameworks have been developed and released for key areas of local authority 
work. We are in the progress of appointing an apprentice Building Control Inspector. 

• We now have an identified resource that will continue to drive the work on apprenticeships 
within HR.  We also have the expertise and background of our newly appointed 
Communications Manager who is looking at which routes are more effective to engage our 
workforce and managers on this subject.   

Page 8



   3.3  In the coming months we have further plans to use our levy funding and improve the take up and use 
of apprenticeships including: 

• Levy transfer - We are able to transfer up to 25% of our levy to other local 
businesses/organisations. Presently we are in discussions with West Midlands Combined 
Authority (broker) and internally with our Economic Development team.  We will look to share 
some of our levy (up to £7,823) locally to assist a return to work role. 

• Targeted apprenticeships for existing staff - We are looking to better utilise the levy that we 
currently have in funding elements of a management development programme in the spring of 
2021.   Much will depend on the commitment needed by individuals to use this option, but 
where we can, we will use the money that currently sits within our levy pot (£61,811).   

• Pay – our experience is that national minimum wage at apprenticeship rate is insufficient to 
attract young people to roles. We are considering levels of pay for different types of 
apprenticeships and shifting focus away from school leavers, as these require significant 
pastoral support to integrate into our workforce. We are looking at rates of pay that other local 
authorities offer and opportunities for succession planning and career graded posts where 
appropriate. These have been used successfully in the past. 

• Professional Sectors – Going forward, if we wish to utilise the levy more fully in professional 
roles that are hard to recruit to (such as planning and environmental health) we may need to 
consider creating additional roles to the existing establishment for us to develop people to full 
professional status.  This would require a growth bid subject to a business case in each instance 
and place additional budgetary pressures on the council but may be the only way to ensure 
succession in key areas where recruitment continues to be problematic. 

• Whilst the uptake national and locally still remains a challenge for districts we are optimistic 
that with our re-launch, improved communications (with employees and managers), we will 
improve the position on apprenticeships.  This will likely be a blend of various interventions 
mentioned above but tempered with the realisation that not all areas across the council will be 
able to look at apprenticeships or apprentices as an option due to their existing pressures 
around capacity and capability in delivering their essential services. 

 

3.4  Kickstart Programme 

In July government announced the creation of a Kickstart Scheme to fund 6 month job placements for 
young people on Universal Credit and at risk of long-term unemployment. Details of the scheme were 
released in early September and include:  

• The intentions for placements to begin nationally in November.  

• Funding to cover National Minimum Wage and on-costs for 25 hours per week per placement. 

• £1,500 per placement to cover setup, support and training. 

• A minimum of 30 placements must be offered by the employer or groups of employers in partnership 
(and £300 towards the costs of setting up such a partnership). 

Whilst it is unlikely we will have capacity to accommodate 30 placements within the Council, we will be 
exploring opportunities to enter into partnership with other local districts/businesses to apply for 
funding. Further updates will be provided if the discussions progress or further guidance is available. 

 
 

Alternative Options        N/A 
 

Consultation 1. We actively are consulting with managers, our staff, unions and our external 
stakeholder and partners who are actively supporting us with this agenda. 

Page 9



LGA / West Midlands Employers/ WMCA. 
 

Financial 
Implications 

1. The current balance in our levy pot stands at  £61,811 
2. £28,531.98 has been given back to central government of expired funds so 

far, though this is set to cease shortly as expired sums are committed with 
each new apprentice and by December 2020 it is anticipated that no funds 
should be returned after this date. 
 

 

Contribution to the 
Delivery of the 
Strategic Plan 

1. Apprenticeships support the District Council’s Strategic Plan 2020 - 2024. 
2. It links into our strategic themes and corporate health indicators 
3. Underpins the culture we are trying to create. 

 

Crime & Safety 
Issues 

1. None 

Environmental 
Impact 

1. None 

 

GDPR/Privacy 
Impact Assessment 

The council continues to work with its stakeholders and training provides ensuring 
that all statements contain compliance with GDPR regulations, which are signed by 
all parties and adhered to along with a copy of the councils GDPR Policy. 
 

 

 Risk Description How We Manage It Severity of Risk (RYG) 
A That we do not achieve our 2.3% 

target 
By providing resources to improve 
communications and a range of 
interventions to promote and make 
best use of the levy funding 

Amber  
Likely hood – high 
Impact - low 

B That our levy funds continue to expire All possible avenues to spend the levy 
including sharing are being explored 
and this expiration will cease soon. 

Green 
Likely hood - medium 
Impact - low 

  

Background documents 
Previous reports to committee 
 
  

Relevant web links 
Public Sector Apprenticeship Target Report 

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/removal-of-apprenticeship-frameworks  

 

 

Equality, Diversity 
and Human Rights 
Implications 

1.    In line with the Public Sector Equality Duty we have ensured that all 
guidance and policy framework are developed in line with regional and 
national guidance.  For example: This includes making reasonable 
adjustments for disabled applicants at all stages of the recruitment process, 
removing the barriers faced by the disability seen or unseen, so the 
individual can work and apply for jobs in the same way as someone who is 
not disabled. 

Page 10

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/912598/Public_Sector_Apprenticeship_Target_Reporting_research_brief.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/removal-of-apprenticeship-frameworks


Document is Restricted

Page 11

Agenda Item 6
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 15

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	4 Apprenticeship Update
	6 Covid 19 Response Payments
	7 Voluntary Redundancy

